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To the Shareholders and Management of "Prokon” Limited Liabflity Company:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of "Prokon” Limited Liability Company (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) as at 31 December 2022, and the Group’s consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards.

What we have audited

The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise:

¢ the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

¢ the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;
» the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

s the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

We conducted our audit in accordance .with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

-Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation. of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsibie for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonabiy be expacted to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
intemal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit avidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. '

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit, We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any ‘significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Baku, Republic of Azerbaijan
22 November 2023



“PROKON" LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note 31 December 31 December
In Azerbaliani manats 2022 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 15 8,183,738 11,756,027
Right-of-use assets 16 1,366,938 1,386,832
Intangible assets 308,312 342,451
Trade and other receivables 18 910,910 -
Deferred tax asset 14 - 111,181
Total non-current assets 11,768,808 13,608,491
Current assets
Inventorles 363,808 2,141,253
Advances given and prepaid expenses 17 5,407,389 6,048,858
Contract assets 18 88,034,361 46,226,699
Trade and other recelvables 19 18,254,532 57,121,410
Other recsivables from related parties 20 3,207,800 1,542,734
Cash and cash equivalents 21 2,082,906 1,372,076
Total current assets 97,350,796 115,353,030
TOTAL ASSETS 109,119,694 128,959,521
EQUITY
Share capltal 22 100 100
Currency translation reserve 879,213 638,341
Retained earnings 14,790,561 16,014,952
TOTAL EQUITY 15,668,874 16,853,393
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabllities
Borrowlngs 23 - 6,975,092
Lease llabillties, long-term portion 16 484,931 -
Deferred tax liability 14 7,130,072 7,354,628
Total non-current llabllitles 7,615,003 14,329,720
Current liabllitles
Borrowings 23 56,142,483 52,995,827
Other payables to related partles - 1,732,000
Lease liabllitles 16 208,917 198,641
Trade and other payables 24 27,914,754 32,380,211
Contract llabilities 18 526,555 4,086,129
Other taxes payable 25 1,044,108 6,573,600
Total current llabflitles 88,834,817 97,876,408
TOTAL LIABILITIES 93,449,820 112,308, 128
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 109,119,694 128, 959 521

The aocompanying notes on pages 5-42 form an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Ff”
Mr. Rauf Aghayev
General Dlrector

% /
A2
Mr. Nijat Allyev | |
Head of Finance
‘Baku, the Repukiiz of Azerbaljan



“PROKON" LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY S
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

In.Azerbaijani manats Note 2022 2021
.Revenue 7 101,185442° 179,237,561
Cost of sales and services 8 (89,084,486) (142,770,568)
Groas profit 12,09'0.95__8" : -36,466,995
Other operating expenses °] (7,998 424) (8.662,286)
Foreign exchange loss, net (1,473,067) (808,051)
Other income 10 2,307,015 .- .88,664
Operating profit 4,928,480 27,195,842
Falr value gain/{loss) on initial recognition {138,087) -
Finance costs 1 (5,494,798) (5,102,6885)
(Loss)/Profit before Income tax (707,305) 22,092,957
Income tax benefit/(expense) 12,14 224,556 (5,953,482)
{Loss)/Profit for the year from continuing operations (48‘4,_:!49) 16,139,475
Discentinued operations:
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 13 813,358 -
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 330,809 16,139,475

Other comprehensive Income:

ltems that may be reclassified subsequentiy to profit or loss:
Translation of financial information of foreign operations te

presentation currency 240,872 638,341
Other comprehensive Income for the year 240,872 638,341
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 571,481 16,777,816

The accompanying notes on pages 5-42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



“PROKON” LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Retained Currency Total
capltal eamings retransfation
In Azerbaijani Manats reserve
.Balance at January 1, 2021 100 3,967,022 - 3,867,122
Profit for the year - 16,139,475 - 16,139,475
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 638,341 638,341
Dividends pald - (4,091,645) - (4.001,545)
Balance at Decomber 31, 2021 100 16,014,852 638,341 16,653,393
Profit for the year - 330,809 - 330,609
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 240,872 240,872
"Dividends paid - (1,555,000) (1,555,000)
Balance at December 31, 2022 100 14,790,661 879,213 15,869,874

The accompanying notes on pages 5-42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



“PROKON" LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

In Azerbajjani manais Note 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities: ‘
(Loss)/Profit before income tax from continued operations (707,305) 22,092 957
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 813,358 -
Adjustments for:
Deprecigtion and amortization 8,8 4,244 344 3,955,102
Foreign exchange loss, net 269,642 496,087
Finance costs, net 5,454,708 5,102,685
Gain on derecognition of net assets of disposed subsidiary {3,308,809) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 131,891 -
Loss on disposal of right of use assets and lease modification 52,691 - 30,198
Fair value loss on initlal recognition 138,987 o -
Impainment charge 1,044,887 689,445
Other 131,648 -
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 8,308,140 32,348,474
- Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other recelvables 38,374,800 (27,308,017)
Decrease/(increase) in advances given and prepaid expenses 1,334,987 (694,802)
" Decrease/(increase) in Inventories 1,608,377 (62,825)
{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (2,361,167) 12,054,180
Inérease in contract assets/liabilliies (25,448,969) (27,082,882)
Increase/(decrease) In {axes payable (5,208,689) 278,205
Net cash flows from operations 16,807,479 (10,771,577)
Income tax paid - (486,488)
Interest pald (5.343,978) (5,018,767)
Net cash from/{used In) operating activities 11,353,501 {16,254,862)
Cash flows from Investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment (1,143,604) (3,135,784)
Acquisition of Intangible assets (9,900) :
Disposai of subsidiary net of cash disposed 088 -
Loans granted to related parties (3,912,800) {2,990,000)
Loan repayments received from related parties 2,247,734 4,382,000
Net cash used In Investing activities (2,817,582) (1,743,784)
Cash flows from financing actlvities:
Dividends pald (1,555,000} (4,001,544)
Proceeds from borrowings 85,648,331 93,524,318
Repayment of borrowings (91,430,108) (70,148,088)
Repayment of lease liabilitles — principal (246,386) (545,745)
Net cash {(used in)ffrom financing activities (7,582,143) 18,737,963
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents 953,776 739,317
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR 1,372,076 337,156
Effect of exchange rate changes (242,946) 295,603
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 2,082,908 1,372,076

The accompanying notes on pages 5-42 form an integral part of these congolidated financial statements.



“PROKON" LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial - -
Reporting Standards for the year ended 31 December 2022 for Prokon Limited -Liability Company (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group"). R

The Company was registered with the State Registry of Commercial Legal Entities Office of Baku City Tax
Department of the Ministry of Taxes of the Republic of Azerbaijan on July 17, 2012 under the registration
N0.1701372611 as a limited liability company under the laws of the Republic of Azerbaijan. -

Principal activity

' The principal activities of the Company invoive diverse types of construction activities including construction
of industrial plants, buildings and warehouses, production and erection of steel structures, tank erection
works, installation and erection of power plants, refineries and pipelines along with the supply of auxiliary.
equipment and materials. "

The following shareholders owned the issued shares of the Company:

December 31, December 31,
2022% 2021 %
Nobiel Energy Limited (UK) Ltd 95 95
Nobel Oil Investment (UK) Ltd 5 5
Total 100 100

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company was ultimately controlled by Mr. Nasib Hasanov.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Prokon Limited Liability Company
and its subsidiaries listed in the following table:

% Interest

Subsidiary 2022 2021 Country
Prokon Trading Azerbaijan LLC 100 100 Azarbaljan, Georgia
Prokon Makine Ingaat Imalat Montaj Sanayi ve

Ticaret Limited Sirketi 100 100 Turkey
Prokon Ukraine LLC 100 - Ukraine
Jermay LLC 100 100 Kazakhstan
Prokon Construction and Engineering LLC - 100 Russia

Registered address and place of business

The Company's registered address is:

89 “Neftchilar” Avenue, apt. 35, Sabail District, Baku, AZ1004, the Republic of Azerbaijan
The Company's principal place of business is:

25 “8 Noyabr” Avenue, Baku Bay Tower, 1 6"' floor, Baku, AZ1025, the Republic of Azerbajjan



“PROKON" LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Business environment

The Group's operations are primarily located in Azerbaijan. Consequently, the Group is exposed to the
economic and financial markets of Azerbaijan which displays certain characteristics of an emerging market.
Current and future growth and stability of the economy is largely dependent upon the effective implementation
of economic, fiscal and monetary measures undertaken by the government as well as crude oil prices and
sustainability of Azerbaijani manats. '

Recent reforms in support of long-term economic stability and sustainability, fiscal and mionetary policies, as
well as contihuous steps to diversify the economy confributed to the overall positive trends In the
macroeconomic environment. Upward trend in oll prices during 2022, henca significant currency inflows ‘into
the country ensured a sustainable exchange rate of the national currency, further strengthened with tight
monetary policies of the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan. ' n

The year of 2022 is marked with higher geopolitical tension, rise in global commodty prices and inflation in.
trade partners, lingering problems in the global value chain and impact of these developments on the global
economy at the time when the world is gradually leaving the Covid pandemic behind. Global demand
recovering faster than supply, sharp volatility of global commedity prices and Inflation in trade partners, as well
as higher transportation-logistic costs weighed on inflation in Azerbaijan. The monetary policy was oriented
towards easing inflationary pressures by means of monetary factors. Whereas external sector indicators
improved in Azerbaijan and economic growth rate increased. The external environment was mainly favourable
for Azerbaijan in terms of the balance of payments and support of domestic economic activity, and the strategic
foreign exchange reserves kept increasing.

Impact of Russia-Ukraine war

The geopolitical situation in Eastern Europe intensified on 24 February 2022, with Russia’s invasion of Ukraine.
The war is increasingly affecting economic and global financial markets and exacerbating ongoing economic
challenges, including issues such as rising infiation and global supply-chain disruption. As a result of
geopolitical situation, the Group disposed of its subsidiary in Russia, “Prokon Construction and Engineering
LLC" at 10 August 2022. The Group had gross financial receivable of AZN 1,430,414 from “Prokon
Construction and Engineering LLC" and credlt loss allowance recognized of AZN 518,504 as at 31 December
2022

The consolidated financial statements reflect management's assessment of the Impact of the Azerbaijani
business environment on the operations and the financial position of the Group. The Group's Management is
monitoring these deveiopments in the current environment and taking precautionary measures as it considers
necessary in order to ensure the sustainability and development of the Group's business in the foreseeable
future. However, the future effects of the current economic and political situation are difficult to predict, and
management's current expectations and estimates could differ from actual results.

2. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and
Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commiitee (“IFRIC").

Basls of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Group is a going
concern and will continue in operation for the foreseeable future. In making this judgment management
considered current plans and financial position of the Group. There are continuous long-term projects and,
hence, the future cash inflow does not cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concem,

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Azerbaijani Manats ("AZN"), unless otherwise
indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention, as modified by
the initial recognition of financial instruments based on fair value, and financial instruments categorised at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI™).
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. Apart from the accounting policy changes effective from 1 January 2022,



“PROKON" LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

these policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.. Refer
to Note 3.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability- in an:orderly
transaction between market participants atthe measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liabllity if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Co_mpahy and entities
controlied by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. ’ '

Control is achieved when the Company:

» Has the power over the investee;
* Isexposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement with the investee; and
*  Has the ability to use its power to affect its retumns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee If facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers that it has power
over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

¢  The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

® Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other partles;
»  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

*  Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the date the Company
gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, édjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting
policies used info line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabllities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transitions between
the members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted. for
as equity transactions. The carrying amount of the Group's interests and the non-confrolling interests are
‘adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company. ' b



“PROKON” LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration’ recelved and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
less liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previcusly recognised.in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed -
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRS). The fair value of any investment retained In

“the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for.
subsequent accounting or, when applicable, the costs on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or jointly controlled entity. : e

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each of the Group’s consolidated entities is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Azerbajjani
Manats (“*AZN"), which Is the Group’s presentation currency. Monetary assets and fiabilities are translated
into each entity’s functional currency at the official exchange rate at the respective end of the reporting
period. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of the transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities into each entity's functional currency are recognised iri profit or
loss.

The Group companles

Loans between the Group entities and related foreign exchange gains or losses are eliminated upon
consolidation. However, where the loan is between the Group entities that have different functional
currencies, the foreign exchange gain or loss cannot be eliminated in full and is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss, unless the loan is not expected to be settled in the foreseeable future and thus
forms part of the net investment in foreign operation. In such a case, the forelgn exchange gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of each Group entity (the functional currency of none of which is a currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

{i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position are translated at the closing rate at the
end of the respective reporting period;

(i) income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is'not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions);

(i) components of eduity are translated at the historic rate; and
(iv) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

At 31 December 2022, the principal rate of exchange used for translating foreign currency balances was
USD 1=AZN 1.7, EUR 1 = AZN 1.8114, GBP 1= AZN 2.0477, RUB 1 = AZN 0.0230, TRY 1 = 0.0909,-GEL
1= AZN 0.8298 (31 December 2021: USD 1 = AZN 1.7, EUR 1 = AZN 1.9265, GBP 1 = AZN 2.2925, RUB
1=AZN 0.0228, TRY 1 = 0.1329, GEL 1 = AZN 0.5489). The principal average rate of exchange used for
translating income and expenses was USD 1 = AZN 1.7, EUR 1 = AZN 1.7921, GBP 1 = 2.1041, RUB 1=
AZN 0.0252, TRY 1 = 0.1042, GEL 1 = AZN 0.5856 (2021: USD 1 = AZN 1.7, EUR 1 = AZN 2.0089, GBP
1=2.3383, RUB 1 = AZN 0.0230, TRY 1 = 0.1964, GEL 1 = AZN 0.5297).

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

The following amendments became effective from 1 January 2022:

Proceeds before intended use, Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework — narrow scope amendments to IAS 16, IAS 37 and IFRS 3, and Annual -
Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 — amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41 (Issued on
14 May 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022).

. The amendment to IAS 16 prohibits an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of PPE any
proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended
use. The proceeds from selling such items, together with the costs of producing them, are now
recognised in profit or loss. An entity will use IAS 2 to measure the cost of those items. Cost will not



“PROKON” LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Include depreciation of the asset being tested because it is not ready for its intended use. Thé

amendment to IAS 16 also clarifies that an entity is ‘testing whether the asset is functioning"properly'.

| +-'when it assesses the technical.and physical performance of the asset. Thefinaricial performance of

the asset is not relevant to this assessment. An asset might therefore be capable of operating as _'
intended by management and subject to depreciation before it has achieved the level of operating '
performance expected by management,

“The amendment to IAS 37 clarifles the meaning of ‘costs to fulfil a contract’. The émendment'ekplains-

that the direct cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract; and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling. The amendment also clarifies that, before
a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, an entity recognises any impairment loss

that has occurred on assets used in fulfiling the contract, rather than on assets dedicated to that

contract.

IFRS 3 was amended to refer to the 2018 Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, in order to”
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability in a business combination. Prior to the amendment,

IFRS 3 referred to the 2001 Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting. In addition, a new

exception in IFRS 3 was added for liabilities and contingent liabilities. The exception specifies that,

for some types of liabilities and contingent liabilities, an entity applying IFRS 3 should instead refer to

IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, rather than the 2018 Conceptual Framework. Without thig new exception, an

entity would have recognised some liabilities in a business combination that it would not recognise

under IAS 37. Therefore, immediately after the acquisition, the entity would have had to derecognise

such liabilities and recognise a gain that did not depict an economic gain. It was also clarified that

the acquirer should not recognise contingent assets, as defined in IAS 37, at the acquisition date.

The amendment to IFRS 9 addresses which fees should be included in the 10% test for derecognition
of financial liabilities. Costs or fees could be paid fo either third parties or the lender. Under the
amendment, costs or fees paid to third parties wili not be included in the 10% test.

lllustrative Example 13 that accompanies IFRS 16 was amended to remove the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements. The reason for the amendment is to
remove any potential confusion about the treatment of lease incentives.

IFRS 1 allows an exemption if a subsidiary adopts IFRS at a later date than its parent. The subsidiary
can measure its assets and liabilities at the carrying amounts that would be included in its parent’s
consolidated financial statements, based on the parent's date of transition to IFRS, if no adjustments
were made for consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business combination in which the
parent acquired the subsidiary. IFRS 1 was amended to allow entities that have taken this IFRS 1
exemption to also measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the
parent, based on the parent's date of transition to IFRS. The amendment to IFRS 1 extends the
above exemption to cumulative translation differences, in order to reduce costs for first-time adopters,
This amendment will also apply to associates and joint ventures that have taken the same IFRS 1
exemption.

The requirement for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation when measuririg fair value under IAS
41 was removed. This amendment is intended to align with the requirement in the standard to discount
cash flows on a post-tax basis.

The application of the amendments had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.



“PROKON"” LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Certain new standards and interpretations have been Issued that are mandatory for the annuat periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 or later, and which the Group has not early adopted. - -

Deferred tax rolated to assets and liabllitles arising from a single transaction — Amendments to IAS
12 (issued on 7 May 2021 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023).
The amendments to IAS 12 specify how to account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and’
decommissioning obligations. In specified circumstances, entities are exempt from recognising deferred tax
when they recognise assets or liabilities. for the first time. Previously, there had been some uncertainty about
whether the exemption applied to transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations
transactions for which both an-asset and a liability are recognised. The amendments clarify that the
exemption does not apply and that entities are required to recognise deferred tax on such transactions: The
amendments require companies to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recoghition, give
rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences.

ClassiHication of liabilities as current or non-current, deferral of effective date - Amendments to IAS
1 (issued on 15 July 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023). The
amendment to IAS 1 on classification of liabilities as current or non-current was issued in January 2020 with
an original effective date 1 January 2022, However, in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, the effectlve
date was deferred by one year to provide companies with mora time to implement classification changes
resulting from the amended guidance.

Amendments to IAS 8: Deflnition of Accounting Estimates (issued on 12 February 2021 and effective
for annual perlods beginning on or after 1 January 2023). The amendment to IAS 8 clarified how
companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting policles (Issued on
12 February 2021 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023). |IAS 1 was
amended to require companies to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. The amendment provided the definition of material accounting policy
information. The amendment also clarified that accounting policy information is expected to be material if,
without it, the users of the financial statements would be unable to understand other material information in
the financial statements. The amendment provided illustrative examples of accounting policy information
that Is likely to be considered material to the entity's financial statements. Further, the amendment to IAS
1 clarified that immaterial accounting policy information need not be disclosed. However, if it is disclosed, it
should not obscure material accounting policy information. To support this amendment, IFRS Practice
Statement 2, ‘Making Materiality Judgements’ was aiso amended to provide guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue fruni contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration set by the contract with the customer and is recognized by
applying the revenue recognition when 1. Identifying the contracts with a customer, 2. Identifying the
performance obligations in the contract, 3. Determining the transaction price, 4. Allocating the transaction price
to the performance obligations in the contract and 5. Recognizing revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation (or as the obligation Is performed over the period of time). Revenue Is measured based
on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognizes revenue when it transfers control of a
product or service to a customer,

Construction contracts

The Group constructs industrial plants under long-term contracts with customers. Such contracts are
entered into before construction begins. Under the terms of the contracts, the Group is contractually
restricted from redirecting the properties to another customer and has an enforceable right to payment for
work done. Revenue from construction contracts is therefore recognized over time on a cost-to-cost method,
i.e. based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated
total contract costs. The directors consider that this input method is an appropriate measure of the progress
towards complete satisfaction of these performance obligations under IFRS 15.
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5. . SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Group becomes entitied to invoice customers for construction contracts based on achieving a series of
performance-related milestones. When a particular milestone is reached the customer.is sent a relevant -
statement of work signed by a third-party assessor and an invoice for the related milestone payment. The
Group will previously have recognised a contract asset for any work performed. Any amount previously
recognized as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date, then the Group recognises
a contract liability for the difference. There is no significant financing component in construction contracts with
customers as the period between the recognition of revenue and the milestone payment is always less than
one year. '

Rendering of services

The Group provides professional services in the construction industries. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time. Revenue is recognised for these services based on the stage of
completion of the contract. The directors have assessed that the stage of completion determined as the
proportion of the total time expected to render services that has elapsed at the end of the reporting period is
an appropriate measure of progress towards complete satisfaction of these performance cbligations under
IFRS 15. Payment for rendering of services is not due from the customer until the services are complete and
therefore a contract asset is recognised over the period in which the services are performed rapresenting the
entity's right to consideration for the services performed to date. When the customer prepays the full or part of
the contract amount, the transaction price received by the Group Is recognised as a contract liability until the
services provided to the customer. If, on the basis of the contract, the values in question express an
unconditional right to payment, they are presented as receivables. Given the technical complexity, the size
and the duration of the project, the additional payments, contract changes, price revisions, other reserves,
and incentives must necessarily be taken into account and measured, before formalization of the agreement
with the counterparty.

Retention Receivable. Retainage Is included in contract assets and liabilities until all of the performance
requirements are completed by the Group. The final determination of classlfication is based on a careful
review of the contract terms, contractor's historical experience of collection and that all costs related to the
retention amount are inciuded in the estimated costs to complete amount included in the work in progress
schedule. Retention amount is classified to accounts receivable once relevant conditions are fulfilied and
such receivable is conditional only on the passage of time.

Disposals of subsidiaries, assoclates or joint ventures

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity, are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Foreign currency transactions

In. preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group, fransactions in currencies other than
-the.entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
-at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in-foreign
currencies are refranslated at the rates prevalling at that date. Non-monetary ltems carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
' was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Compensation and employee benefit costs

Remuneration to employees in respect of services rendered during the reporting period, including accruals
for unused vacation and bonuses and payroll taxes, is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incumed.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the requirements of the Republic of Azerbaijan legislation, pension payments are
calcufated by an employer as certain percentages of salary expenses and transferred to the pension fund
of the Republic of Azerbaijan. This expense is charged to the statement of comprehensive income in
the period in which the related salaries are sarned. Upon retirement, all retirement benefit payments are
made by the pension fund. The Group does not have any pension arrangements separate from the state

-pension system of the Republic of Azerbaijan. In addition, the Group has no post-retirement benefits or
other significant compensated benefits requiring accrual. '

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable, deferred tax and estimated
reassessments, if such are relevant given the varying interpretations of the local tax code.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reportad
in the statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income because of '

items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that-are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilitles are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which of those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow zll or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabllities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequencas that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and defered tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Operating taxes

Azerbaijan also has various other taxes, which are assessed on the Group's activities. These taxes are
included as a component of operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

VAT recoverable ' '

VAT recoverable comprise of input VAT that mainly originated from the advance payments made fo"
suppliers for services to be rendered or works to be performed as per conditions of the relevant supplier
agreements and purchase of goods, works or services which can be offset against output VAT as per
requirements of tax legislation of the Republic of Azerbaijan in future. The current tax legislation of the
Republic of Azerbaijan provides for the following input VAT recovery options:

¢ Credit against the output VAT:

» Offset with other corporate tax liabilities;

* Claim for the monetary refund from the National Treasury of the Republic of Azerbaijan.

Management makes an estimation that the Group will offset the VAT recoverable with other corporate tax
liabilities.

12



“PROKON" LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Other taxes payable balance

“Other tax payables"' line in the statement of financial position mainly comprise of output VAT méiniy on
sales invoices not yet settled and declared VAT liability for the sales invoices alrea_'qy settled._ ' '

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are carried at historical cost less accumulated depréciaiibri and reqogriiéed
impairment loss, if any. Depreciation is charged on the carrying value of property and equipment and is
designed to write off assets over their useful economic lives. '

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis at the following annual prescribed rates:

Useful lives in years
Machinery and equipment 5-10
Motor vehicles .
Furniture and other fixed assets . 4=10

An item of equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when-no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of equipment is determined as the difference beiween the sales proceeds and the carmying amount
of the asset and is recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period
in which property is derecognised.

intanglble assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, which is 5 to 15 years. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective baslis. The Group does not have intangible assets with indefinite useful life as at year end.

Impalrment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
Ifany such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and vaiue in-use. In assessing value in-use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced fo its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the Increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
‘amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. ' o

inventories

Inventories, consisting primarily of construction materials and supplies are measured at the lower of costand . -
net realizable value. The cost of inventories is based on weighted average cost principal, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in
bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in
progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of compietion and selling expenses.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Prepayments

Prepayments are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. A prepayment is classified as non-
current when the goods or services relating to the prepayment are expected to be obtained after one year, or .,
when the prepayment relates to an asset which will itself be classified as non-current upon initiql recognition.

' Prepayments to acquire assets are transferred to the carrying amount of the asset once the Group has
obtained control of the asset and it Is probable that future economic benefits associated’ with the asséet will
fiow to the Group. If there is an indication that the assets, goods or services relating to a prepayment will not
be received, the carrying value of the prepayment is written down accordingly and a corresponding impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss for the period.

Investment In an assoclate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant infiyence is the. power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financlal statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is ‘initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate axceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group stops
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill} is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to seli) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised, forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment foss is
recognized in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate, but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabllities.

When agroup entily transacts with an associate of the Group, profitt and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the Group. For further information refer to Note
20,

Loasos

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
‘leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. '

) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amourit of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease Incentives: received. Right-bf-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-
of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section Impairment of tangible
and intangible assets.

i)  Lease labiiitles

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the. present
value of lease paymenis to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable iease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
the option to terminate. R .

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recoghised as ekpé'n'sies (unlé‘ss they
are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs. '

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases across the Grc'!up. These terms are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations.
Extension options (or period after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

In calcuiating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk, and makes
adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and collateral.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of Interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabillties is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes fo
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option fo purchase the underlying asset.

/i)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It alsc applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Provisions and contingencies
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to seftie the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation,

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present

obligation at each reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. -
When a provigion is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its canrying"
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingencles

Contingent liabiiities attributable to specific events are disclosed unless the probability of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the statement
of financial position but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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8. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the d_O_ntrg::tua‘I
provisions of the instrument. - : o

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs. that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (cther than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or ioss) are added to or deducted from the fair- vaiue
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized immediately in profit or loss. ' '

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash-and cash equivalents comprise bank balances, cash in transit, cash deposits with banks with original
maturitles of three months or less and petty cash.

Financial assets

Financial assets of the Group are classified in the measurement category of amortised cost (AC).
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition.

Effective Interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an Integral
part of the effective interest rate transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carmying amount on initial
recoghition.

Other recelvables from related parties

Loans issued to related parties are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade recelvables and contract assets. Lifetime ECL represents the expected
-credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to resuit from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

in general, ECL is the sum of the multiplications of the following credit risk parameters: EAD, PD and LGD,
that are defined as explained below, and discounted to present value using the instrument’s effective interest
rate. The ECL is determined by predicting credit risk parameters (EAD, PD and LGD) for each future month
during the lifetime period for each individual exposure. These three components are multiplied together and
adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure has been repaid or defaulted in an earlier month). This
effectively calculates an ECL for each future period, that is then discounted back to the reporting date and
summed up. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest rate or an
approximation thereof.

LGD represents the Group's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by the type
of counterparty, type and seniority of the claim, and the availability of collateral or ottier credit support. The
lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors that impact the expected recoveries after a default event.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Group derives thie EAD from the current
exposure to the counterparty. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount at the time of defauit.
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The Group uses information obtained from external credit reference agencies in order to'assess probabiifty of
-default {(PD) based on transition matrix to measure expected credit losses (ECLs). .

()  Significant increase in credit risk

-In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
‘recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initia! recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative informaticn that is reasonable and'
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available Without uhdue
cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts, govemnmental
bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the Group's core operations. -

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assassing‘\'_ui".lether credit risk has
increased significantly since Initial recognition: Sl

. An actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument's external (if available)
or internal credit rating; S - B

o  Significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been
less than its amortised cost;

s  Existing or forecast adverse changes In business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease In the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

*  Anactual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor:
»  Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor:

*  An actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition If the financial instrument is determined to have low credit rigk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

1. The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

2. The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

3. Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

-The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of 'performing’. Performing means that the tounterparty has a
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts. '

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the critéria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due, .

(i)  Definition of default .

Ifhistorical experience indicates that financial assets, for which information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full, the
Group considers this as an event of default for internal risk management purposes.
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Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is
moré than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to.demonstrate.
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

/Afinancial asset Is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the‘e's_tir'riafte.d
future cash fiows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events: '

(a) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event (see (i) above);

{c) The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrowéi"s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s} that the lender{s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other ﬁn_a_ncial'reorgnisation;
or

(e} The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.
(v) Wrte-offpolicy

(v) The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic progpect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery

procedures, taking into account legal advice, where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

(vi) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the
current reporting date, except for assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments. with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the. investment revaluation
reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derscognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire; or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership-
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risk and rewards -
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in
“the asset and an associated liabiiity for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize
the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received. -

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial llabiiities and equity Instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt-and equity instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability arid
an eguity instrument.

Financial llabliitles

Financial liabilities (other than financial guarantee), including trade and other payables are initially measured
at fair value, net of transaction costs. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized costusing
the effective interest method, with interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

Derecognition of financial llabilitles.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised

-and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabllities assumed, is
recognised in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Offsetting. Financial assets and financial liabilities are offget and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Such a right of set off (a) must not be contingent on a future event and (b) must be legally
enforceable in all of the following circumstances: (i) in the normal course of business, (i) in the event of
default and (jii) in the event of insolvency or bankruptcey.

Dividends. Dividends are recorded as a liability and deducted from equity in the period in which they are
declared and approved. Any dividends declared after the reporting pericd and before the consolidated
financial statements are authorised for issue are disclosed in the subsequent events note.

Amendment of the consolidated financlal statements after Issue. Any changes to these consolidated
financial statements after issue require approval of the Group's management who authorised these
consolidated financial statements for issue.

6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment
to the camrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

Going Concern

Management prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. In making this
judgement management considered -the Group's financial position, current intentions, profitability of
operations, availability of new long-term projects and access to financial resources and analysed the impact
of situation in the relevant markets on the operations of the Group.

The ability of the Group to continue as going concern is largely dependent on the decision of shareholder
and on the successful obtaining and availability of contracts in future. The Group’s current construction
projects are expected to end within the next year, and as of the signing date of the consolidated financial
statements, no new large service agreements have been secured, which may impede its ability to meet its
-financial obligations and sustain its operations. As of 6 November 2023, “Nobel Energy Limited" provided a
letter to “Prokon LLC" confirming that the Shareholder will provide the necessary financial support to the
Group such that the Group is able to operate as going concern and to settle its liabilities as they fall due.
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6. .- CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

ECL measurement
Measurement of ECLs is a significant estimate that involves determination methodology, modeis and data

inputs. The following components have a major impact on credit loss allowance: definition’ of default, -~

Significant increase in credit risk (“SICR"), probability of default ("PD"), exposure at default ("EAD"), and
{oss given default ("LGD"), as well as models of macro-economic scenarios. The Group regularly reviews
and validates the models and inputs to the models to reduce any differences between expected credit loss
estimates and actual credit loss experience.

Useful lives of property and equipment.

The estimation of the useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment is a matter of judgment based
on the experience with similar assets. The future economic benefits embodied in the assets are consumed
principally through use. However, other factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence and wear
and tear, often result in the diminution of the economic benefits embodied in the assets. Management
assesses the remaining useful lives in accordance with the current technical conditions of the assets and
estimated period during which the assets are expected to earn benefits for the Group. ‘The following primary
factors are considered: (a) the expected usage of the assets; (b) the expected physical Wear and tear, which
depends on operational factors and maintenance programme; and (c) the technical.-or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes in market conditions.

VAT recoverable

The current tax legislation of the Republic of Azerbaijan provides for the following input VAT recovery
options:

o Credit against the output VAT:;
o Offset with other corporate tax liabilities;
» Claim for the monetary refund from the National Treasury of the Republic of Azerbaijan.

Management makes an estimation that the Group will offset the VAT recoverable with its output VAT and
other corporate tax liabilities.

Profitabliity of the construction contract

The margins originally estimated by the Group may reduce or increase due to higher or lower costs,
respectively, incurred by the Group during contract execution. Generally, when the Group's policies and
procedures to identify, monitor and manage costs for contract execution do not reflect the duration and
complexity of the contract, or they are no longer accurate following the occurrence of unforeseeable events,
the Group's results may be impacted. The Group has an experience and managerial capacity to perform
controlling policies procedures and functions in order to track execution of the contract and accurately reflect
the duration and complexity of it. As of 31 December 2022, major contracts under which the Group is
operating were assessed as profitable. Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward complation
is constantly monitored by the management at the end of each reporting period and revised, if circumstances
change.

The Group has major construction contract:
HAOR Project

Due to the nature of services being provided by the group, budgeted revenue represents a risk weighted
amount fixed in the agreement with the Customer. As a result of evolving economic conditions, one of the
key assumptions is the potential prolongation of the contract beyond the expected compietion date. Project
completion percentage reached 100% by the end of June 2023. As of 31 December 2022, the percentage
of completion was 97%. Total cumulative revenue and costs recognized as of 31 December 2022 for HAOR
project were AZN 289,903,330 and AZN 258,248,355 respectively.

Lease - Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a property lease across the Group. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group's operations.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED) R

-Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). '

For leases of buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant;

'« [fthere are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Group Is typically reasonably certain
to extend {or not terminate). ' '

If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Group is typically
reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

*  'Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and
business disruption required to replace the leased asset. ’

The extension options in office leases have not been included in the lease liability, because the Group could
replace the assets without significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercisad) or the Group becomes
obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised If a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the
control of the lessee. During the current financial year there is no the revision of lease term to reflect the
effect of exercising extension and termination options occurred.

Budgeted costs and revenue recognition

The revenue of the Group is mainly derived from a long-term contract. The unit of account in IFRS15is a
performance obligation. A contract's transaction price is allocated to performance obligation and recognised
as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied. Performance obligations of the Group are
satisfied over time as work. Because of control transferring over time, revenue is recognised based on the
extent of progress towards completion of the performance obligation.

The selection of the method to measure progress towards completion requires judgment and is based on
the nature of the products or services to be provided. Cost-to-cost measure of progress is used for the
contract because it best depicts the transfer of control to the customer that occurs as the Group incurs costs
on the contract. Under the cost-to-cost measure of progress, the extent of progress towards completion is
measured based on the ratlo of costs incurred to date to the total estimated costs at completion of the
performance obligation. Revenues, including estimated fees or profits, are recorded proportionally as costs
are incumred. Due to the nature of the work required fo be performed, the estimation of total revenue and
cost at completion is complex, subject to many variables, and requires significant judgment. The Group
includes estimated amounts in the transaction price when it believes it has an enforceable right to the
modification, the amount can be estimated reliably, and its realization is probabie. The estimated amounts
are included in the transaction price to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative )
revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration Is
resolved.

The cost controliers of the Group estimate total contract costs based on their experience and then adjust
these estimates for specific risks, such as technical risks associated with a new design. Costs associated

- with specific rigks are estimated by assessing the probability that conditions arising from these specific risks
wiil affect the total cost to complete the project. After work on project begins, assumptions that form the
basis for the calculation of total project cost are examined on a regular basis and the estimates are updated
to reflect the most current information and management's best judgment.

‘Adjustments to estimates of contract revenue, total contract cost, or extent of progress toward completion
are often required as work progresses under the contract and as experience is gained, even though the
scope of work required under the contract may not change. The nature of accounting for long-term contracts
is such that refinements of the estimating process for changing conditions and. new developments are
continuous and characteristic of the procass. Consequently, the amount of revenue recognised over time is
sensitive to changes in the Group's estimates of total contract costs. o b
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7. REVENUE

~In Azerbajani Manats . 2022 2021
Construction and maintenance services 86,507,886 - 165,550,029
Sale of goods 14557556 . 12,727,023
Provision of services - " 950,609
Total revenue 101,155,442 179,237,561

The Group has construction contracts to complete various construction, design and installation 'séwldés fdr
numerous customers. The main construction contract signed with TCM-KT JV Azerbaijan LLC in 2018.is for
the construction scope at HAOR (Heydar Aliyev Qil Refinery).

Timing of revenue recognition (for each revenue stream) is as follows:

_In Azerbaijani Manats 2022 2021
At a point In time 14,557,556 13,877,632
Over time 86,597,886 165,559,929
Total revenue from contracts with customers 101,155,442 179,237,561

8. COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

In Azerbaiiani Manats Note 2022 2021
Staff costs 33,047,624 33,351,154
Cost of goods sold 13,369,529 11,161,076
Matarials and components used 12,838,260 24 848,045
Services of subcontractors 11,891,067 52,169,719
Rent expenses 6,402,423 10,376,604
Depreciation and amortieation 15,16 3,481,159 3,625,087
Meal expsnses 2,438,704 3,144,519
Transportation services 1,602,977 988,089
Repairs and maintenance services 1,468,273 298,103
Fuel expenses 1,213,267 1,843,689
Insurance costs 174,851 177,383
Other 1,337,352 1,080,088
Total cost of sales 89,064,488 142,770,666

-Included in staff casts are stafutory social security contributions of AZN 5,217,383 (2021: AZN 4,404,468).
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9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

'in Azerbaijani Manats Note 2022 L., 2021
Staff costs 3,361,686 3,556,047
Professional services 1,807,674 2,420,501
Impairment of assets 1,044,887 669,445
Deprectation and amortization 15,16 763,185 430,005
Bank charges 423,317 345,313
Business trip expenses 203,208 237,875
Rent expenses . 180,556 192,342
Repairs and maintenance 168,017 375,941
Tax penalties and Interest 90,082 139,145
Communication expenses 19,846 ‘21,297
Cther 135,058 184,575
Total other operating expenses 7,988,424 8,552,288

Included in staff costs are statutory social security contributions of AZN 370,091 (2021: AZN 748,620).

Professional services are mostly comprised of services rendered by the parent company to the Group, such
as financlal, legal, internal audit, procurement and other services.

10. OTHER INCOME

AZN 2,307,015 of other income includes AZN 1,637,894 recovery of the accrued liability. The remaining
balance of other income is mainly attributable to penalties charged on the late delivery of services by

subcontractors.
11. FINANCE COSTS

Note 31 December 31 December

in Azerbaijanl Manats 2022 2021
Interest on borrowings 23 4,670,486 4,276,570
Interest on bonds 28 783,379 £55,845
Interest on lease liabilities 16 70,868 39,170
Interest Income on financial assets camed at amortised cost (29,966) (68,800)
-Total finance costs 5,494,798 5,102,685

12. INCOME TAX BENEFIT(EXPENSE)

31 December 31 December

In Azerhalfani Manats - 2022 2021
Deferred tax benefit/(charge) 224,556 (5,843,781)
Under provision of current 1ax in prior year - (108,701)
Total Income tax benefit/{expense) 224,556 (5,963,482)
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12. INCOME TAX BENEFIT/(EXPENSE) (CONTINUED)

The income tax benefit for the year calculated at Azerbaijani statutory income tax rate of 20% can be

reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

. 31 December. 31 December
In Azerbajjani Manats 2022 . -2021
(Loss)/Profit before tax (707,305) 22,002,057
Income tax benefit/(expense) calculated at 20% 141,461. (4.418,591)
Effect of permanent differences 435,428 (93,193)
Effects of different tax rates in other counfiries 41,554 L.
‘Unrecognized tex loss carry forwards for the year (408,940) (1,441,698)
Unrecognised other potential deferred tax assets 1,233 -
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax loss camy forwards 13,820
Income tax beneflt/(expense) recognized in profit or loss 224,556 (5.963,482)

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Prokon Constructicn and Engineering LLC is presented as a discontinued operation following the approval

for its sale by the Group's management and shareholder on 10 August 2022.

An analysis of the result of discontinued operations, and the result recognised on the remeasurement of

assets, or the disposal group Is as follows:

Year enced Year ended

in Azerbalfani Manats December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Revenue 645,536

Cost of sales (66,444)

Gross profit 579,092

Other operating expenses (2,453,0687) (690,621)
Forelgn exchange loss, net - (13,610)
Loss before income tax {(1,873,975) (704,231)
Income tax {expense)/benefit (155,403) 74,495
Loss after income tax of discontinued operation {2,028,378) (629,736)
Gain on sale of the subsidiary 2,842 736 -
Profit/{Loss) for the year from discontinued operations 813,358 (629,736)
Exchange differences on translation of discontinued operations 479,241 {8,577)
Other comprehensive Income/(loas) for the year from

discontinued operations 479,241 {6,577)
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13. © DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)
Detafls of gain on the disposal of the subsidiary:

In Azerbaijanl Manats 2022
Consideration received 8,500
Less: . ;
Carrying amount of net assets sold (3,306,899)
Galn on sale before reclassification of forelgn currency translation reserve 331 5,359_
Reclassification of foreign currency transiation reserve (472,663)
* Gain on sale of the subsidiary 2,842,736
An analysis of the cash flows of discontinued operations is as follows:
~ In Azerbaijani Manats 2022 2021
Net cash outflow from operating activities (665,275) (431,250)
Net cash outflow from investing actlvities (56,408) (41,0886)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 620,043 538,797
Net (decrease)/increase In cash generated by the subsidiary (92,6840} 63,561
14. DEFERRED TAX
Movement in temporary differences during the respective years is as follows:
Recognised In Recognised In
profit or loss profit or loss
within within
Tax effect of deductible/(taxable) December 31, continuing discontinued December 31,
temporary differences 2021 operations operations 2022
Cash and cash equivalents - - - -
Trade and other receivables {238,050) 747,403 - 509,353
Advances given and prepaid expenses 217,998 (37,180) - 180,818
Other receivables from related partiee 68,000 - - 68,000
Property and equipment 55,564 103,719 - 159,283
Right-of-use assets (279,366) 6,178 - (273,188)
Lease liabilities 39,728 98,642 - 138,370
Contract assets and liabilities {8,527,958) {3,117,581) - (11,645,539)
Trade and other payables (703,099) 876,032 =+ 272,033
Tax loss carry forward 2,123,738 1,447,343 {111,181) .. 3,459,900
Net deferred tax llabllity (7.243,447) 224,558 (111,181)  (7,130,072)
Recognised deferred tax asset 2,505,028 2,283,620 - 4,788,855
Recognised deferred tax liablity (9,748,473) (2,059,073) (111,181)  (11,918,727)
{111,181)  (7,130,072)

Net-deforred tax asset llabliity (7,243,447) 224,568
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14. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)
Tax effect of deductible/(taxable)

Y

December 31, Recognisedin December 31,
temporary differences 2020 profit or loss - 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 3,457 (3.467) -
Trade and other receivables (1,102,323) 864,273 (238,050)
“Advances given and prepaid expenses {112,631) 330,527 217,998
-Other recelvables from related parties ©o- 68,000 68,000
Property and equipment (63,826) 119,380 . 55,564
Intanglble asset (4,115) 4,115 ' -
Inventory (228,310) 228,310 -
- Right-of-use assets (140,288) (139,078) .{279,366).
Bomrowings 26,834 (26,834) T .
Lease liabliiies £9,790 {(60,062) 39,728
Contract assets and liabilities (3,894,185) (4,833,773) (8,527,958)
Trade and other payables 534 426 (1,237,525) © (703,009)
Tax loss cany forward 3,481 405 {1,357,667) - 2,123,738
Net deferred tax llabflity {1,399,668) (5,843,781) (7,243,447)
Recognisad deferred tax asset 4,145,912 (1,640,886) 2,505,026
Recognised deferred tax liabllity (5.545,578) (4,202,885) {9,748 473)
Net deferred tax asset llabllity (1,399,868) {5,843,781) {7,243,447)

The Group has recognized a deferred tax asset in respect of originated tax losses in the amount of AZN
3,458,900 and substantial amount of the balance is allowed for carry forward. The tax loss carry forwards

expire as follows:

In Azerbaljani Manats 2022 2021
Tax loss camry-forwards expiring by the end of:

- 31 December 2025 2,081,135 2,081,135
- 31 December 2028 1,414,934 1,414,034
- 31 December 2027 209,556 -
Total tax loss carry forwards at 31 December 3,685,625 3,476,068

Net deferred tax balance originates mostly because of differences in cash and accrual basis accounting for
contract assets, liabilitles and accounts receivable. Such differences are of temporary short-term nature and
expected to be utilised over the next period. The Group has sufficient future taxable profits built upon existing
and potential opportunities. In the context of the Group’s current structure, tax losses arid current tax assets
of different Group companies may not be offset against current tax liabilities and taxable profits of other
Group companies and, accordingly, taxes may accrue even where there is a consolidated tax loss,

Therefore, deferred tax assets and liablilties are offset only when they relate to the same taxable entity or
consolidated Group of taxpayers. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arising in different

subsidiaries which may not be netted off for tax purposes were presented se

statement of financial position.
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16. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the carrying amount of property and equipment were as follows:

Machinery Motor Fumiture Leasehold Total
and vehicles and office Improve-

In Azerbaijani Manats B equlpment equipment - ment

Cost at 1 January 2021 13,841,626 761,460 732,838 38,505 15.474.51-§
Accumulated depreciation (3,123,158) (283,933) (218,680) (7.719).  (3,633,480)
Carrying amount at 1

January 2021 10,818,468 477,527 514,168 .30,876 11,841,029
Additions 2,439,122 - 281,412 41 5,250 3,135,784
Depreciation charge {(2,810,885) {147,860) {177,893) (71,544) (3,208,182)
Translation to presentation

currency - - - (12,604) (12,804)
Carrying amount at

31 December 2021 10,446,705 329,667 817,877 361,978 11,756,027
Cost at 1 January 2022 16,380,748 761,460 1,014,250 441,241 18,587,689
Accumulated depreciation {5,934,043) (431,783) (3886,573) {79,263) (6,841,672)
Carrying amount at 1

January 2022 10,446,705 329,867 617,677 361,978 11,756,027
Additions 884,343 80,117 273,027 5,570 1,223,067
Disposals {1,316,693) {161,178) {113,855) (4,156) {1,695,882)
Cost derecognized due to

disposal of subskdiary - - {116,730) - (118,730)
Depreciaticn charge (3,021,399) {149,084) {224,448) {87.598) {3.482,529)
Accumulated depreciation of

disposals 1,253,931 100,445 109,515 - 1,463,891
Accumulated depreciation

derecognized due to disposal

of subsidiary - - 15,358 - . .15,356
Translation to presentation .
currency {(48,860) (4,580) (25,211) (801) (79,452)
Carrying amount at

-31 December 2022 8,198,027 175,387 535,331 274,993 9,183,738
Cost at 31 December 2022 15,899,538 655,819 1,031,481 441,854 18,028,892
Accumulated depreciation (7,701,511) (480,432) (498,150} {168,861) (8,844.954)
Carrylng amount at
31 December 2022 8,198,027 175,387 535,331 274,993 9,183,738
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

The -Group has lease contracts for various items of machinery, workshop buildings, vehicles and other
equipment used in its operations. The Group's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title
to the leased assets. -

The Group also has certain leases of machinery and vehicles with lease terms of 12 months or Iess The
Group applies the 'short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

- Some property leases. contain variable payment terms that are linked to future usage of underlying asset.
Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base. Variable
lease payments that depend on usage of underlying asset are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Expenses relating to variable lease payments not included in lease liabilities are reflected in'consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income within "Cost of sales and services” in amount
of AZN 2,349,745 (2021: AZN 3,488,938).

‘Set .out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements dunng the
period:

Machinery Workshop Motor Total
and bulldings Vahicles

equipment
As at 1 January 2021 - 662,530 18,911 701,441
Additions 73,276 1,344,765 - 1,418,041
Disposals - (269,924) - (269,024)
Depraciation charge {(26,170) (843,177) {23,105) (692,452)
Other - 216,653 23,073 239,728
As at 31 December 2021 47,106 1,330,847 18,879 1,396,832
Additions - 138,709 - 139,707
Disposals (47,106) - (18,879) (66,983)
Depreciation charge - (717,776) - (717,776)
Other - 613,168 - 613,158
As at 31 December 2022 - 1,365,938 - 1,365,938

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

2022 2021
As at 1 January 198,641 498,952
Additions 139,707 73,276
Accretion of interest 70,899 398,170
Payments (317,265) (584,915)
Derecognition (69,211) (269,924)
Modification 660,077 442,082
As at 31 December 691,848 198,641
Current 206,917 198,641
Non-current 484 931 -
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The foliowing are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

2022 2021
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets _ 717,776 662,452,
interest expense on leasas liabilities (included in finance cost) 70,809 39,170
Expense relating to short-term leases (inclided in cost of sales) C s 50,878
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other operating ) 5
expenses) - 61,608 -
Expense relating to variable fease payments not included in lease N o N _
liabilities {included in cost of sales) 2,349,745 _ 3.._48,8.9,38 )
Total amount recognized in profit or loss 3,200,028 4,271,438
The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was AZN 317,265 (2021: AZN 584.915): .
17. ADVANCES GIVEN AND PREPAID EXPENSES
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Advances to suppliers 5,221,051 6,684,028
Prepaid expenses 186,338 264,830
Total advances glven and prepald expsnses 5,407,389 6,948,858
Movements in prepayments are as follows:
In Azerbaijani Manats Total
Carrying value at 1 January 2021 5,954,060
Additions ) 44,919,219
Frepayments derecognised on receipt of related goods or services (43,924 421)
"Total prepayments at 31 December 2021 6,948,858
Additions 23,015,843
Prepayments derecognised on recsipt of related goods or services (24,348,282)
Translation to presentation currency {8,547)
Disposal of subsidiary {206,483)
Total prepayments at 31 December 2022 5,407,389
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18. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ARISING FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities arising from contracts with customers: - -

In Aze pajiani Manats 31 December2022. . 31 December 2021.

Current contract assets from contracts with customers 68,445,539 - 48,556,144
Loss allowance (411,178) s (3_29.{145).-‘
_Total current contract assets 68,034,361 46,226,699
Contract liabilitles — advances from customers 526,555 4,086,129
:tal current contract liablliHes 528,555 - 4,086,129

‘At 31 December 2022 the Group recognised AZN 68,046,832 of contract asset net of impairment loss
provisions in respect of following contracts (at 31 December 2021: AZN 46,226,699):

1. AZN 60,028,541- with TCM-KT JV Azerbaijan (HAOR - Paket A project) (at 31 December 2021: AZN
34,058,984);

2. AZN 4,785,558 with Ravy Property (Ravy project) (at 31 December 2021: AZN 5,111,403);
3. AZN 2,986,410 with SOCAR-Uniper LLC (at 31 December 2021: AZN 2,270,489);

4. AZN 59,500 with Tecnicas Reunidas (Substation Building) (at 31 Decernber 2021: 493,049);
5. AZN 174,352 with Tecnicas Reunidas (U71 - MECHANICAL) (at 31 December 2021: zero);

The Group applies the IFRS 9 general model to measuring expected credit losses for contract assets. The
contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially similar risk characteristics as the
trade receivables for the same types of contracts. These are of short-term nature as trade receivables, thus
provisioned in lifetime mode. However, the longer the contract asset is outstanding the higher is the
increased risk that it will not be collected. The Group uses extemnal rating information and statistics to derive
risk parameters for provisioning model. For more information refer to Note 26. At the same time, accounts
receivable is grouped based on’ shared credit risk characteristics and the days outstanding to monitor
performance and payment behavour of its customers. The Group may elect to further downgrade assigned
external rating, if such is necessary.

The foliowing table explains the changes in the credit loss allowance for contract assets under simplified
ECL mode! between the beginning and the end of the annual period;

. In Azerbaijani Manats 2022 - 2021
Allowance for credit losses on contract assets at 1
January 329,445 -
Asgets derecognised during the period 88,220 -
New originated or purchased (8,487) 320,445
Balance at 31 December 411,178 329,445

At 31 December 2022 the Group recognised AZN 526,555 of contract liabilities in respect of following
contracts (at 31 December 2021: AZN 4,086,129):

1. AZN 526,555 with Oil Refinery named Heydar Aliyev (U62 MECHANICALY); (at 31 December 2021:
Zere).
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18.  ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ARISING FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)
Unsatisfled long-term contracts with customers

The following table presents information on unsatisfied performance obligations resulting from long-term
contracts with customers.

‘ 31 December 31 December
“In Azerbaiiani Manats 2022 2021
Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to long-
term contracts that are partially unsatisfied as at 1 January and 20,030,461 55,440 467
31 December

Management expects that remaining part of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as
of 31 December 2022 will be recognised as revenue during the next reporting period.

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 31 December
In Azerbajjani Manats 2022 2021
Trade receivables 12,585,405 50,146,534
Other financlal receivables 1,430,414 -
Less credit loss allowance (994, 156) (31,002}
Total trade recelvables 13,021,753 50,115,532
VAT recoverable 5,508,042 6,842,806
Other receivables 637,647 62,982
Total trade and other recelvables 19,165,442 57,121,410
Current 18,264,532 57,121,410
Non-current 910,910 -
Total trade and other recelvables 19,165,442 57,121,410

Trade receivables of AZN 5,107 thousand net of credit loss allowance are denominated in foreign currency,
mainly In US dollars.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The credit loss allowance for trade and other receivables is
determined according to migration matrix. Expected loss rate is the product of probability of default and
loss given defauit parameters. Refer to Note 26 for detalls, )
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Age of trade receivables is presented in the below table:

In Azerbaiiani Manats .31 December 2022, 31 Decembor 2021
Currént and not impaired 1,435,466 20,827,883
Age of receivables that are past due: .
.1-30 days 1,429,801 7,501,437
31-60 days 368,767 1 3,023,445
61-90 days 3,503,174 3,336,334 -
91-180 days 880,847 7,506,480
181-360 days 1,214,190 8,020,472
Over 360 days 3,753,250 31,494
Total trade raoelvable! 12,585,496 50,148,534
20. OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES
_In Azerbaifani manals 2022 2021
Loans issued to related parties 3,547,800 1,882,734
Less: Credit loss allowance charge in profit or logs {340,000) (340,000)
Total carrying amount of loans at AC 3,207,800 1,542,734
Total loans lssued at 31 December 3,207,800 1,542,734
21, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
In Azertisjjani Manats 2022 2021
Bank balances payable on demand 2,081,087 1,383,769
Cash on hand ) 219 8,307
Total cash and cash squivalents at 31 December 2,082,908 1,372,076

The table below discloses the credit quality of cash and cash equivalents balances based on credit risk
grades at 31 December 2022. Refer to Note 26 for the description of the Group's credit risk gradinig. system.,

In Azerbaiiani Manats

- Good
- Satisfactory

Total cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances
able on
pavt:lal"rra'ricl

"1,944.307
137,680

2,081,987
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21. ' CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The table below discloses the credit quality of cash and cash equivalents balances based on credit rigk
- grades at 31 December 2021. Refer to Note 26 for the description of the Group's credit risk grading system.

Bank balances

. payable on
In Azerbajjani Manats demand
.- Excellent 99,848
- Good 489,561
- Satisfactory 253,725
- Special monitoring 540,535
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,363,769

22. SHARE CAPITAL

The Company's share capitai is comprised of 20 participation shares with a par value of AZN 5. Each share
entities one vote to the shareholder. The structure of the share capital is presented in the Note 1.

Dividends declared and paid during the year were as follows:

In Azerbaijani Manats 2022 2021
Dividencis payable at 1 January

Dividends declared during the year 1,555,000 4,091,544
Dividends paid during the year (1,555,000) (4,091 544)

Dividends payable at 31 December - -

Dividends per share declared during the year 77,760 204,577

23. BORROWINGS

In Azerbaijanl Manats 2022 2021
Term loans 55,688,880 59,678,113
Accrued interest on term loans 339,383 158,989
Accrued interest on bonds 134,210 133,817
Total borrowings at 31 December 56,142,483 59,970,919

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in currencies as follows:

In Azerbaiiani Manats 2022 2021
Borrowings denominated in:

- Azerbaijani Manats 27,955,321 35,736,087
=" US Dollars 26,394,908 24,161,508
- Euros 1,790,584 . 72,424
- Turksih liras 1,670 -
Total borrowings &t 31 December 56,142,483 59,970,919
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23. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Details of term loans are as follows:

Interest 31 December, 31 December,

- rate Maturity date Rate 2022 Rate 2021

USD denominated

International Bank of

Azerbaijan Fxed  30/11/2023 6%  19,040.426 6% 18,870,184

Pasha Bank Fixed 02/04/2022 - - 4.50% 5,227,037

Kapital Bank Fixed 31112/2023 4.50% 6,319,367 at -

Pasha Bank Fixed 02/04/2021 - - 4.5% 2,875,800

AZN denominated

Pasha Bank Fixed 30/09/2023 10.50% 7,628,588 10.50% 10,000,000

Pasha Bank Fixed 30/09/2023 10.50% 13,027,020 10.50% 15,230,000

Pasha Bank Fixed 13/02/2022 - - 10.50% 700,000

International Bank of .

Azerbaljan Fixed 16012023 4 5o 6,975,002 10.50% 6,675,002

EUR denominated

Pasha Bank Fixed 11/05/2023 5.00% 1,778,398 - -

Interest payable 339,383 158,989

Total 56,008,273 59,837,102

Long-term portion of

borrowings - 6,975,092

Current portion

repayable In one year

and shown under

current lfabllities 56,008,273 52,862,010

The table below sets out movements of the Group's borrowings for each of the periods presented. The
movement items of borrowings are reported as financing in the consolidated statement of cash flows;

_in Azerbaijani Manats 2022 - 2021
Liabllities from financing actlvities at 1 January 59,870,919 36,41 B.ZBé
Loan drawdowns 85,649,331 93,524,318
Repayments of principal {89,698,108) -{70,149,068)
Interest accrual 5,453,865 5,132,415
Interest payments (5.273,078) (4,977,627)
Forelgn exchange adjustments 39,554 22,611
Liabilities from financing activities at 56,142,483 59,970,919

31 Decamber
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

In Azerbailani Manats . 2022 . . 2021
Trade payables . 19,876,083 26,799,848
Accrued llabllities and other créditors 3,710,728 2,416,640
Total financial payabies within trade and other payables at AC 23,586.81 1 _25,21__6.288
Accrued employee benefit casts 2,448,821 2,745,667
Other 1,879,322 428,256
Total other payables 4,327,943 13,173,923
Trade and other payables at 31 December 27,914,754 32,390,211

25. OTHER TAXES PAYABLE

Other taxes payable balance is comprised of value added tax, withholing tax, property tax and personal
income tax.

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital management

The Group's capital has been managed by the shareholders to ensure that it will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt or
equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group is comprised of equity and borrowings. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group has no externally imposed capital
requirements throughout 2022 and 2021.

Categories of financlal instruments

The Group’s principal financial liabilities co:i'lpn'se loans, trade and other payables. Financial assets are
represented by cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.

All financial instruments held by the Group are recorded at amortized cost.
The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit, liquidity and currency risks."
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations rasulting in financial
loss to the Group. Financial assets which are potentially subject to concentration of'-credit_'risk_ consist

principally of trade and other recsivables, contract assets and cash and cash equivalents.: '

Credit risk grading system. For measuring credit risk and grading financial instruments by the amount of
credit risk, the Group applies an approach based on risk grades estimated by external-iriternational rating -
.agencies (Standard & Poor's — "S&P”, Fitch, Moody's). External migration matrices were used for PD
calculation and the defined master scale with a specified range of probabilities of default-are disclosed. in ..
the table below:
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
-Master scale credit risk grade _Corresponding ratings of external Corresponding PD interval
Intemational rating agencles (S&P)
Excellent AAATo BB 0,01% - 0,5%
Good BB to B+ 0,561% - 3%
Satlsfactory B, B- 3% -10%
Special monitoring CCC+to CC- 10% —99,9%
Default C, D-, D-ll 100%

Each master scale credit risk grade is assigned a specific degree of creditworthiness:

Excellent — strong credit quality with low expected credit risk;

Good - adequate credit quality with a moderate credit risk;

Salisfactory — moderate credit quality with a satisfactory credit risk;

Special monitoring — facilities that require closer monitoring and remedial management; and
Default - facllities in which a default has occurred.

External ratings are assigned to counterparties by independent international rating agencies, such as S&P,
Moody's and Fitch. These ratings are publicly available. Such ratings and the corresponding range of
probabilities of default (“PD") are applied for financial assets.

External credit risk ratings are used to estimate credit risk parameters PD and LGD from the default and
recovery statistics published by the respective rating agencies.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases, cash and cash equivalents and borrowings that
are denominated in currencies other than AZN. The currency in which these transactions primarily
denominated is US Dollars (USD) and Euro (EUR).

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the

reporting period:
At 31 December 2022 At 31 December 2021
Monetary Monetary Net position  Monetary Monetary Net position
financlal financial financlal financlal
In Azerbaijani Manais assets llabllities assots llabliitles
US Dollars 5,800,662 (27,062,238) (21,161,574) 35430,938 (25,350,937) 10,089,001
Euros 2,387,644  (2,043,285) 344,259 3,758,208 (285,063)- 3,473,143
Pound Sterling 1,043,395 {206,640) 836,766 2,659,104 (461,025) 2,008,079
. .Russlan Rubble ' - - " - 100,720 . (357,078) (256,356)
Turkish Lira 98,088 {(1,669) 97,319 4,059 {128,787) (124,728)
- Georglan Lari 407,672 {(1,708) 405,988 4,864 35,856 40,720
‘Total 9,838,261 (29,306,636) (19,487,275) 41,866,891 (26.547,632) 165,319,859
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26.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

~.." The following table presents sensitivities of profit or loss and equity to reasonably possible changes in

exchange rates applied at the end of the reporting period relative to the functional currency of the respective
Group entities, with ail other variables held constant:

At 31 December At 31 December

2022 2021

Impact on profitor Impact on profit or

Ifr Az=rbajani Manats loss loss

" US Dollar strengthening by 20% (2021: strengthening by 20%) {4,230,315) 2,017,800
US Dollar weakening by 20% (2021: weakening by 20%) 4,230,315 {Z,017,800)
"Euro strengthening by 20% (2021: strengthening by 20%) 68,852 894,629
-Euro. weakening by 20% (2021: weakening by 20%) {68,852) (684,629)
Pound Sterling strengthening by 20% (2021: strengthening by 20%) 167,351 419616
Pourid Sterling weakening by 20% (2021: weakening by 20%) (167.351) {419,616)
Russian Rubble strengthening by 20% (2021: strengthening by 20%) T (51,271)
"-Rusgslan Rubble weakening by 20% (2021: weakening by 20%) - 51,271
" Turkish Lira strengthening by 20% (2021: strengthening by 20%) 19,464 (24,9486)
Turkish Lira weakening by 20% (2021: weakening by 20%) (19,484) 24,946
Georgian Lari strengthening by 20% (2021: strengthening by 20%) 81,163 8,144
Georglan Lar weakening by 20% (2021: weakening by 20%) {81,193) (8,144)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities. The Group seeks to maintain a stable funding base primarily consisting of borrowing and trade and
other payables. The Group keeps the funds in cash and cash equivalents, continuously monitors forecast and
actual cash flows in order to be able to respond quickly and smoothly to unforeseen liquidity requirements.

The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

The liquidity position is monitored and regular liquidity stress testing under a variety of scenarios covering both
normal and more severs market conditions is performed by the Group's Finance function.

The following tables detail the Group's analysis over remaining expected maturity periods for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash fiows of
financial liabilities.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities at 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Contractual

Contractual cash cash flows

flows iess than more than 12
In Azerbaijani Manats 12 months months Total

Liabllities

Bank loans 58,453,428 58,453,428
Lease liabilities 163,316 663,535 " 828,850
Trade and other payables 23,586,811 B 23.585.811
Total future payments, Including future 82,203,554 663,535 82,867,089

principal and Interest payments
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26. . FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities at 31 December 2021 is as foliows: .
Contractual

Contractual cash flows
cash flows less more than 12
In Azerbaljan! Manats than 12 months months Total
Liabllities C
‘Bank loans 55,212,256 7,880,517 63,092,773
Lease liabilities 280,866 S . 289,856
Trade and other payables 29,216,288 - . 28,216,288
Total future payments, Including future , R
principal and interest payments 87,718,400 7,880,517 92,588,917

Interest rate risk

The Group does not have floating interest rate financial instruments. Therefore, risk exposure to the effects
of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on the Group's financial position and cash
flows is minimized by having fixed rates negotiated on borrowings. However, interest margins may increase
once loans mature and there is a need to negotiate a new credit facility.

27. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

Assots and /labliitles not measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed

Fair values analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy and the carrying value of assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value are as follows:

31 December 2022 B 31 December 2021
Level 1 fair Level 2 fair Level 3 falr Level1 Level2falr Level 3 fair
value value value fair value value value

ASSETS
Financlal assels
atAC
- Casgh and cash B
equivalents 2,082,906 - - 1,372,076 -
- Trade
recelvables - - 12,110,843 - - 50,115,532
- Other financial _
recelvables - - 910,910 - - -
- Other receivables
from related
parties - - 3,207,800 - - 1,542,734
Total assets 2,082,906 - 16,229,553 1,372,076 - 51,858,266




“PROKON” LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

31 December 2022 31 December 2021 - .-
Level 1 o Level 1
falr Level 2 fair Level 3 falr falr Level 2 fair Level 3 fair

value value value value value value
LIABILITIES
Borrowings
- Term loan - 56,142,483 - - 60,870,919 -
Other financial
flabliities
-= Trade payables . - 10,876,083 - - 26,799,648
- Other accrued o
liabilities - 3,710,728 - - 2,416,640 "
Total liabllitles - 56,142,483 23,586,811 - 59,970,919 29,216,288

The fair values in level 2 and level 3 of the fair value hierarchy were estimated using the discounted cash
flows valuation technique. The fair vaiue of unquoted fixed interest rate instruments was estimated based
‘on estimated future cash flows expected to be received discounted at current interest rates for new
instruments with similar credit risks and remaining maturities.

Financlal assets carried at amortised cost

The estimated fair value of fixed interest rate instruments is based on estimated future cash flows expected
to be received discounted at current interest rates for new instruments with similar credit risks and remaining
maturities. Discount rates used depend on the credit risk of the counterparty.

Liabilitles carrled at amortised cost

The estimated fair value of fixed interest rate instruments with stated maturities were estimated based on
expected cash flows discounted at current interest rates for new instruments with similar credit risks and
remaining maturities. The discount rates used depend on the length and currency of the liability.

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, all of the Group's financial assets and liabilities were carried at amortised
cost. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities of the Group approximate carrying value of the financial
instruments.

28. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Guarantees

The Group's financial guarantees at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 were as follows:
In Azerbaijani Manats 2022 2021
Performance bonds 30,077,668 46,378,211
Advance bonds 25,715,858 6,808,702
Bid bond 980,184
Warranty bond 728,761 -
Total guarantees 57,511,471 53,284,913

Guarantees issued concem guarantees issued by banks in the interest of Group operating companies in
relation to commitments undertaken upon core operations:

* Performance bonds - contract successful execution guarantee. With this guarantee, the bank undertakes the
obligation to repay the client, up to a set amount, in the case of non-compliant execution of the contract by the
contractor. Refer to Note 11.
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*.Advance bonds - repayment guarantee, requested for payment of contractual advances, With this guarantee
the bank undertakes the obligation to repay the client a set amount, as reimbursement for amounts advanced, -
in the case of contractual non-compliance by the party requesting the guarantee (the contractor). Refer to Note
1. .

Insurance

Theinsurance industry in Azerbaijan is at developing stage and many forms of insurance protection for
manufacturing business common in other parts of the world are not yet available. The Group does not have
full coverage for its plant facilities, business interruption or third-party liability in respect of property or
environmental damage arising from accidents on Group’s property or relating to. Group's operations.
The Group may be expected to compensate significant damages and losses from accidsnts with Group's
property or relating to Group's operations.

Legal proceedings

From-time to time and In the normal course of business, claims against the Group are received from
counterparties. Management Is of the opinion that no material unaccrued losses will be incurred and
accordingly no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

On the basis of the evidences gathered, it is conceivable that extra costs may arise in the continuation of the
project, mainly related to prolongation (and acceleration) of construction activities and miscellaneous costs.

However, impact of these costs will strongly depend from the cutcome of negotiation with customer, that will
determine strategy of the project {e.g. possible schedule-driven approach, and related acceleration costs) and
timing to complete the works (and therefore prolongation costs), the definitive resolution of the uncertainties
that prevented the Group to executs its scope of work. Nevertheless, such costs will likely be counterbalanced
by resolution of the pending change.

Management is of the opinion that no material losses will be incurred in respect of this case.
Taxation

Commercial legislation of the Republic of Azerbaijjan, including tax legislation, may allow mere than one
interpretation. In addition, there is a risk of tax authorities making arbitrary judgments of business activities.
If a particular treatment, based on management's judgment of the Group’s business activities, was to be
challenged by the tax authorities, the Group may be assessed additional taxes, penalties and interest.

Such uncertainty may relate to the vaiuation of financial instruments, valuation of provision for impairment
losses and the market pricing of deals. Additionally, such uncertainty may relate to the valuation of
temporary differences on the provision and recovery of the provision for impairment losses on receivables,
as an underestimation of the taxable profit. The management of the Group believes that it has accrued
estimated tax amounts due and therefore required IFRIC 23 provisions have been followed in the consolidatad
financial statements. :

Generally, taxpayers are subject to tax audits with respect to three calendar years preceding the year
of the audit. However, completed audits do not excluge the possibility of subsequent additional tax audits
performed by upper-evel tax inspectorates reviewing the results of tax audits of . their subordinate tax
inspectorates. Also, according to the current practice, the statute of limitation for tax liabilities may be
‘extended beyond the three-year term set forth in the tax legislatlon, if a court determines that the taxpayers
has obstructed or hindered a tax inspection.
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29, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are generally considered to be related if the parties are under common control or if one parly has -

-the ability to control the other party or can exercise significant influence or joint control over the other party
in making financial and operational decisions. In considering each possible reiated party relationship,..
attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form.

At 31 December 2022, the outstanding balances with reiated parties were as follows:-
Entitles Assoclate

. under ‘- management
- . common personne]

In Azerbajjani Mansts _ control _ o
Loans lssued ' 3,207,800 - -
Contract assets 4,785,558 - -
Gross amount of trade recsivabies 4,612,370 - -
Trade and other payables 7,868,434 82,354
Lease liabilities (effective interest rate: 15.51 %) 481,230 - -
Gross amount of advances given and prepald expenses 630,585 fo. -

The Income and expense items with related parties for the year ended 31 December 2022 were as
follows:

Entities under _
common : management
In Azerbaljani Manats o control  Assoclate personnel’
Revenue from services rendered 3,026 422 - -
Informatlon, consulting and other professional services 1,500,074 - -
Services of subcontractors 4,386,414 - -
Other expenses - - 800,636
Other income 237,445 - -
At 31 December 2021, the outstanding balances with related parties were as follows:
Entlties
under
common management
_In Azerbaijani Manats e control Assoclate personnel
Loans issued 1,542,734 - -
Contract assets 5,204,035 - -
Gross amount of trade recsivables 8,172,253 - -
Trade and other payables 581,383 - 239,703
Other payabies to related parties 1,732,000 - -
Gross amount of advances given and prepaid expenses 2,054,157 - -

The income and expense items with related parties for the year ended 31 December 2021 were as
-follows:

Entitles under - ‘

common management

_In Azerbaijani Manais = ) control  Assoclate personnel
Revenue from services rendered 15,972,030 - -
Net impairment iosses on financlal and contract assets 92,632 340,000 -
Provisions for financlal assets - - -
information, consuiting, and other professional servicos 608,268 - -
Services of subcontractors 17,841,494 - -
Other - - 239,703
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Key management compensation is presented bealow:

) _ _ 2022 ‘2021
in Azerbaiian! Manats _ Exponse Expense
Shori-term benefits: ‘ .

-+~ Salarles ) 451,802 468,203
Post-employment benefits:
- State pension costs 115,258 174,378
Total key management compensation 567,150 642,671

30. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
COVID-18 developments

In May 2023, World Health Organization announced that Global health emergency of COVID-19 is over,
The special quarantine regime measures introduced by the Azerbaijani Government continues to be applied
to country’s land and sea borders and regime has been extended till 02 January 2024,

The management of the Group have been closely monitoring the latest developments around COVID-19
and does not expect any material impact on their financial statements.

New significant contracts and amendments

On 23 January 2023, "Prokon LLC" entered into debt agreement with its related party, “Nobel Energy
Management®, up to AZN 10,000,000. If the debt is not repaid within one year from the date of issuance,
the debt shall be paid to the lender by the borrower with annual 5% interest rate starting from the next month.

On 23 August 2023, “Prokon Trading LLC" concluded a new three-year agreement with “BP Exploration
(Caspian Sea) Ltd" on provision of goods for maintenance, repair and operations (MRO) materials, including
industrials spares and equipment. The effective date of the new agreement is 14 August 2023 and duration
is three years.

On 21 September 2023, “Prokon Makine Ingaat Imalat Montaj Sanayi ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi” concluded
-an-agreement with “SOCAR Midstream Operations LLC" for provision of Igdir-Nakchivan Gas Pipeline HDD
crossings.

28 September 2023, “Prokon" LLC signed an amendment to loan contract “No K2666" with “Pasha Bank®
OJSC. Interest rate on loan was revised to 12% (previously 10.5%) and usage date of ioan was extended -
till 22 December 2023. Additionally, AZN 4,400,000 was agreed to be repaid till the yearend.

Borrowings

Subssquent to 31 December 2022, total bank loan receipts and repayments of the Group were respectively
AZN 25,898,552 and AZN 35,220,014.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, loan balances payable to related parties increased by AZN 6,299,000.

42



